Agenda
Contact Officer: Nicola Meurer, Democratic Services Officer,
Democratic Services Officer
Tel: 01235 422523
E-mail: nicola.meurer@southandvale.gov.uk
Date: 24 September 2018
Website: www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

A MEETING OF THE

Planning Committee
WILL BE HELD ON WEDNESDAY 3 OCTOBER 2018 AT 6.30 PM
THE RIDGEWAY, THE BEACON, PORTWAY, WANTAGE, OX12 9BY
Members of the Committee:
Sandy Lovatt (Chairman)
Janet Shelley (ViceChairman)
Stuart Davenport
Robert Hall

Jenny Hannaby
Anthony Hayward
Bob Johnston

Ben Mabbett
Catherine Webber

Katie Finch
Chris Palmer
Helen Pighills

Julia Reynolds
Emily Smith
Reg Waite

Substitutes Councillors
Yvonne Constance
Margaret Crick
St John Dickson

Alternative formats of this publication are available on request. These include
large print, Braille, audio, email and easy read. For this or any other special
requirements (such as access facilities) please contact the officer named on this
agenda. Please give as much notice as possible before the meeting.

1

1.

Chairman's announcements

To receive any announcements from the chairman, and general housekeeping
matters.
2.

Apologies for absence

To record apologies for absence and the attendance of substitute members.
3.

Declarations of interest

To receive any declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests in respect of items on
the agenda for this meeting.
4.

Urgent business

To receive notification of any matters which the chairman determines should be
considered as urgent business and the special circumstances which have made the
matters urgent.
5.

Public participation

To receive any statements from members of the public that have registered to speak
on planning applications which are being presented to this committee meeting.

2

Planning applications
All the background papers, with the exception of those papers marked
exempt/confidential (e.g. within Enforcement Files) used in the following reports
within this agenda are held (normally electronically) in the application file (working
file) and referenced by its application number. These are available to view at the
Council Offices (135 Milton Park, Milton) during normal office hours.
Any additional information received following the publication of this agenda will be
reported and summarised at the meeting.

Summary index of applications
Site Address

Proposal

Application No

Page.

6.

Land to the
East of Portway
Cottages,
Reading Road,
East Hendred,
Wantage, OX12
8JD

Variation of Condition 8 of
P15/V2560/FUL (proposed residential
development of 46 dwellings) to
remove the requirement for bus stops
and associated works on the A417
and replace the requirement for a
Toucan type pedestrian crossing to a
Puffin type crossing as per technical
safety audit from Oxfordshire County
Council Highways Authority.

P18/V0113/FUL

4 - 27

7.

The Old Gaol,
Bridge Street,
Abingdon,
OX14 3HE

P18/V0492/FUL
Proposed change of use of a section
of ground floor space to form three
apartments. Retrospective consent for
the erection of blockwork partitions to
the same space.

28 - 45

8.

The Old Gaol,
Bridge Street,
Abingdon,
OX14 3HE

P18/V0493/LB
Proposed change of use of a section
of ground floor space to form three
apartments. Retrospective consent for
the erection of blockwork partitions to
the same space.

46 - 52

MARGARET REED
Head of Legal and Democratic

3

Agenda Item 6
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0113/FUL
Land to the East of Portway Cottages Reading
Road East Hendred WANTAGE, OX12 8JD
EAST HENDRED
Variation of Condition 8 of P15/V2560/FUL to
remove the requirement for bus stops and
associated works on the A417 and replace the
requirement for a Toucan type pedestrian
crossing to a Puffin type crossing as per
technical safety audit from OCC Highways
Authority
Proposed residential development of 46
dwellings (As amended by drawings and
information accompanying agent's emails of 8
April 2016, 25 May 2016, 12 and 22 August
2016)
Michael Murray
Graham Flint
Charlotte Brewerton

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that this application be granted planning permission
with the following conditions attached and subject to a deed of variation.
Officers note that pre-commencement conditions have been discharged
on the original application and that works at this site have been completed
for the crossing. Therefore the following conditions will be required to be
implemented as per those details approved by application P17/V0251/DIS.
1. Time limit (full application).
2. Approved plans.
3. Roads and footpaths prior to occupation.
4. Construction traffic management plan.
5. Hours of work.
6. Protection of archaeological features.
7. Archaeological watching brief.
8. Access.
9. Off site highways works.
10. Car parking area.
11. Bicycle parking.
12. Noise.
13. Landscaping scheme (implementation).
14. Tree protection.
15. Maintenance of open space/play areas.
16. Materials (samples).
17. Sustainable drainage scheme.

Page 4

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

18. Boundary details in accordance with plan.
19. Slab levels (dwellings).
20. No windows or rooflights (dwelling).
21. Obscured glazing (opening).
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

This application comes before planning committee as the application is
considered a major scheme (original permission sought the development of 46
dwellings) to which the parish council object to the variation of the condition
seeking alterations to the offsite highway works.

1.3

The site, which lies within the parish of East Hendred, is currently under
construction for 46 dwellings following planning permission P15/V2560/FUL. All
pre-commencement conditions have been discharged (P17/V0251/DIS).

1.4

The site lies within the Lowland Vale landscape designation, with the North
Wessex Downs Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty boundary marked by the
southern edge of the A417, opposite the site. A site location plan can be seen
below:

1.5

This current application seeks to vary condition 8 of planning permission
P15/V2560/FUL for the development of 46 dwellings on land to the East of
Portway Cottages, Reading Road, East Hendred.

The application comes back to planning committee after having been deferred
from the meeting on 1 August 2018. The report has been altered to take into
consideration a Counsel Opinion after the agent wished to withdraw the
application due to the works having already taken place. Counsel have advised
that this application should be determined as Condition 8 recommends that
‘prior to occupation all off site highways works shall be in accordance with
approved plans’. This application therefore comes before committee in order to
ensure that the planning obligations on the original planning permission
P15/V2560/FUL can be adhered to. The previous officers report from 1 August
planning committee can be seen attached at Appendix 1.

Page 5

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

1.6

Condition 8 of application P15/V2560/FUL sought off site highways works to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
original permitted scheme included bus stops with associated infrastructure
and a Toucan type crossing with a cycle/footway along the southern side of the
A417. Oxfordshire County Council, as Highways Authority, requested the
crossing type and requested that the details be secured by condition.

1.7

Details of the proposed footway were submitted by the applicant during the
application process and showed a shared footway and cycleway on the
southern side of the road, having crossed the A417 from the new development.
However, when the technical drawings for these works were submitted to
Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) and considered the Road Safety Audit
Stage 1/2 dated 18 March 2017, OCC concluded that on safety grounds a
Toucan type crossing (designed for both cyclists and pedestrians) was not
appropriate in this location. In reaching this conclusion OCC considered the
location of the boundary wall of Mather House abutting the approved
pavement. The maximum available highway land along this stretch of
pavement is 2m wide and that there would be safety concerns if pedestrian and
cyclists were to use this as a shared surface. Consequently, a pedestrian
footway and a Puffin crossing (designed for pedestrians only) would be the
safer option on this southern side of the A417, hence the change in crossing
details.

1.8

A similar application (P17/V2002/FUL) to vary Condition 8 of planning
application P15/V2560/FUL was considered and refused at Planning
Committee on 13 November 2017 where committee considered that the
provision of a 2-metre-wide footway would create a highway safety issue. The
applicant withdrew this application prior to the refusal notice being issued. The
planning position at present is that the 2m wide footpath, having planning
permission under the approval of P15/V2560/FUL with a Toucan crossing, can
be implemented but this is not considered the safest option now that a full road
safety audit has taken place. OCC Highways have re-considered the width of
the path along the southern part of the A417 that connects the new
development into the existing village and community facilities and suggests a
Puffin crossing would be most appropriate.

1.9

Having considered these issues further, the consideration of the 2m wide
footpath now does not form part of the current application as this footpath has
already been approved at this width under the original planning permission
P15/V2560/FUL. There is to be no change to this pathway as approved only
that it will now no longer be a shared footway/cycleway but rather for use by
pedestrians only, thereby improving the situation and safety of the pathway for
users. Cyclists will have to dismount and walk along this stretch after having
crossed at the pedestrian crossing. This requirement has come from OCC
Highways Authority and their Safety Audit Team.

1.10

The change from a Toucan crossing to a Puffin crossing is included in the
description of the current application for clarity only, as a crossing has already
been approved in this location under P15/V2560/FUL and there are no
changes proposed to the crossing location.

Page 6

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

1.11

Offsite highway works have already been completed for a crossing in this
location in accordance with the S.278 agreement between OCC and the
developer in December 2017. A copy of the approved S278 is attached at
Appendix 2.These works connect the Pye 3 site to White Road and include
realignment of the road, the construction of the 2m wide footway on the
southern side of the A417 and an upgrade to the pavement at the top of White
Road which allows pedestrians to cross safely and onto the signalised crossing
leading to Pye sites 1 and 2. A plan which shows these works in detail is
attached at Appendix 3.

1.12

Given that there are no changes to the existing planning permission for this
crossing, planning permission is not required to seek the changes being sought
to the type of crossing and associated off site highways works from
downgrading its crossing type. While the agent has included the crossing
details in the description of the application the details concerned with the
crossing have already been approved via the submission of details to OCC
Road Safety Team and a statement from OCC is attached for information at
Appendix 4.

1.13

The permitted crossing became usable as of 15 June 2018 with the lights being
in operation and the speed limit of this road downgraded to 30mph. The
changes to this crossing involve the type of switches that are to be placed upon
the signalised crossing poles, the signage and markings on the road. These
details can be approved as part of the offsite highways team safety audit. The
details only need to be submitted to the Planning Department to be signed off
as per condition 8 of the permitted scheme in consultation with the Highways
Team. As the condition states that ‘Prior to occupation of any dwelling house
all off site Highways works shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the
Local Planning Authority’. In order for the developer to adhere with this
planning condition this application therefore needs to be determined, as
advised by Counsel Opinion from Francis Taylor dated August 2018. In
addition, these crossing details form part of the S278 Agreement from OCC.

1.14

The current application, like the previous withdrawn application, seeks the
removal of the bus stops along the A417 only. These bus stops are a legal
requirement within the S106 entered into as part of the original permission and
officers must consider the impact of their loss in this location.

1.15

The S106 sets out the obligations of Pye Homes in the build out of this site.
Should this application be considered acceptable then the Developer will be
required to enter into a deed of variation with the Council to ensure that the
existing obligations continue subject to any variation resulting from an approval
of this current application

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received is set out overleaf. Comments made can
be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 7

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

East Hendred
Parish Council

Object
 Removal of bus stops creates a longer, unsafe
passage for cyclists and pedestrians
 All village facilities are to the south of A417 so will
be heavily used and safe passage is paramount
 Full safety Audit should be carried out that is
more extensive than that proposed by RSA.
 Small differences to scheme but net affect has
serious implications for bus passengers, cyclists
and pedestrians.

Oxfordshire
No objection subject to conditions.
County Council
 In the wider context the location of bus stops are
Single Response
better served by being located elsewhere and
associated with another development, but in
walking distance to this site.
 Space does not safely permit for a Toucan type
pedestrian crossing and the main issue is that
safe passage is facilitated across the A417 and
this can be done through a Puffin type crossing.
Additional comments received after having read EHPC
comments and PBA report:
No Objections

SGN Plant
Protection Team
Neighbours



The main point of concern is the streetscape
interaction between the s278 works for the
crossing and the location of the bus stop.



Through the s278 process Road Safety Auditing
(RSA) is undertaken and appropriate design
modifications made, within the general principles,
as established through the planning process.

No strong views.
 gas pipes are not within the digging zone of the
crossing and off site highways works.
Object (2)
 Support for cycling
 change in path will aid congestion by increasing
car use
 increase in pollution and slowing of traffic on
A417
 non-compliance with previous refusal
 outstanding discharge of conditions
 bus stops are necessary in this location
 dangerous crossing
 minimum site lines for 30mph not 40mph as
signage along road suggests.

Page 8

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P17/V0251/DIS - Approved (06/09/2017)
Discharge of Conditions: 3 - levels, 4 - external construction materials, 5 boundaries, 6 - landscaping, 7 - arboricultural method statement, 8 - off-site
highway works, 9 - Travel Plan Statement and Information Pack, 10 Construction Traffic Management Plan, 11 - drainage scheme, 12 - drainage
strategy, 13 - bicycle parking and bin storage, 14 - Archaeological Written
Scheme of Investigation, 15 - Archaeological mitigation, 16 - traffic noise
mitigation, 17 - windows to Plot 17 and 18 - open space and children's play
area on planning permission P15/V2560/FUL - Proposed residential
development of 46 dwellings
P17/V0324/NM - Approved (08/03/2017)
Non material amendment to application ref. P15/V2560/FUL(Proposed
residential development of 46 dwellings) to omit carports provided for plots 2-6
and substituting carports with garages to plots 23-26, 31-34 and 35-42 (As
amended by Drawing Nos: 2836.200 Rev L, .212 Rev D, .213 Rev D and .220
Rev F to increase the size of new garages)
P15/V2560/FUL - Approved (15/11/2016)
Proposed residential development of 46 dwellings (As amended by drawings
and information accompanying agent's emails of 8 April 2016, 25 May 2016, 12
and 22 August 2016)
P16/V0235/O - Refused (30/09/2016)
Outline planning application for the erection of 75 dwellings (10 of which will be
specialist accommodation for older people), communal hub for older persons
accommodation, retention of the existing Bed and Breakfast and associated
open space, with all matters reserved (as clarified by amended application
forms accompanying agent's letter of 6 April 2016 that confirms this application
seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved and as further
clarified by information accompanying agent's letter of 12 May 2016 and
amended by Drawings accompanying agent's letter of 7 July 2016)
P15/V2328/O - Refused (21/01/2016) - Appeal allowed (18/04/2017)
Outline planning application for the erection of 75 dwellings (10 of which will be
specialist accommodation for older people), communal hub for older person’s
accommodation, retention of the existing Bed and Breakfast and associated
open space, with all matters reserved save for that of access.

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES

Not required as the development is not within a sensitive location, fewer than
150 dwellings and less than 5Ha.

The main considerations in the determination of this application are:
 whether removal of the bus stops would adversely affect the highway
network or inconvenience future occupants of the approved
application site known as Pye 3, for 46 dwellings;

Page 9

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

5.2

Highway safety
On submission of the Section 278 agreement to Oxfordshire County Council
Highways Team it became apparent from the Road Safety Audit that the
inclusion of bus stops along the A417 would cause safety concerns and conflict
with the proposed toucan type crossing from Pye 3 development to the village
of East Hendred.

5.3

In discussion with OCC the applicant (Pye Homes) has sought the removal of
the bus stops within the immediate vicinity of Pye site Phase 3, an obligation
that was required from a signed S106.

5.4

The committee report of application P15/V2560/FUL noted (at para 6.64) that
‘The A417 is also an important public transport corridor, linking Wantage to
Harwell. The Highways Authority have requested a proportionate contribution
to the improvement of bus services along the A417 and this is again
considered necessary as part of the mitigation of this scheme. Furthermore,
bus stops on the A417 serving the site will be needed”.

5.5

The situation has not changed, Officers agree that with the additional
residential sites currently being built along A417 additional public transport
infrastructure is required.

5.6

The Parish Council have submitted their comments alongside having a
consultant consider their issues. Peter Brett Associates (PBA) have stated that
a point of concern is ‘Now that there have been changes to the (highway)
scheme, there will be different operational requirements on the highway, and
the safety of the proposals should now be considered afresh.’

5.7

At the present time there are existing bus stops along White Road and further
within the village itself. OCC Officers have advised Vale Planning Officers, in
their email dated 14 September 2018, that East Hendred Parish Council have
met with the Highways Infrastructure Coordinator on site with a view to
discussing the placement of the required bus stops and associated structures
along this stretch of the A417. The new bus service has started using
temporary bus stops provided for user’s convenience.

5.8

Vale Officers have been advised by OCC that the new bus stop infrastructure
will commence the week beginning 1st October 2018. These will be funded
using developer contributions held from the adjacent ‘Pye 2’ site. In addition to
these monies there is also funding from the Greensands development via an
obligation sought through a signed S106. It is intended that as the Greensands
site comes forward, contributions from that site will be used to provide bus
stops, further east along A417. Therefore, two different sets of bus stops will be
provided for along this stretch of road to provide for all future residents of the
Pye development sites 1, 2 and 3 and the Greensands development as it
comes forward.

5.9

The Featherbed Lane Improvement Scheme (P15/V0774/LDP) will provide a
new roundabout junction on A417 and the bus stops would be located to the

Page 10

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

west of this junction to ensure that they are within walking distance of all new
developments.
5.10

OCC responded on the previous application (P17/V2002/FUL) that whilst the
buses are running on a temporary route, during the build out of these sites and
the reconfiguration of the road, the bus stops cannot be implemented safely
within the immediate vicinity of this development. Whilst it is noted that
additional bus services will be needed along this stretch of road, the bus
infrastructure sought as part of the Pye 3 development would be an
overprovision and cannot be implemented safely or without causing conflict
with other improvements along this road.

5.11

The previously refused scheme (P17/V2002/FUL) for the removal of bus stops
received 2 letters of objection from local bus providers. This application has
had no comments made from either party. The bus providers, in discussion
with OCC, understand that bus stops and local bus provision will be placed
along this stretch of the A417 as per the strategic approach to development
and no comments have been made to this effect. All providers who previously
made representations on P17/V2002/FUL were consulted.

5.12

OCC has considered the amended plans including the details of the crossing
type, the removal of the bus stops and the PBA report submitted on behalf of
East Hendred Parish Council. OCC conclude that there are no highways
objections to the scheme now proposed for offsite highways works.

5.13

The Road Safety Audit has considered the crossing type, its location and the
location of bus stops in context along the A417 and safety audits levels 1, 2
and 3 fully consider the pedestrian route to the bus stops outside the Pye 1 and
2 developments is accessible in this location. Therefore, the context of the road
and the amendments to it have been fully considered.

5.14

Planning Officers have no evidence that the change in crossing type and
the removal of the bus stops would pose a safety risk to pedestrians of the Pye
3 development site. Nor is there evidence that pedestrians would use the north
side of A417 rather than walk the safer route using two crossings to access the
Pye 3 development. This is an assumed route.

5.15

The permitted crossing provides for safe access for pedestrians of the Pye 3
development to the village of East Hendred and onto bus stop provision outside
of the adjacent Pye 1 and 2 developments in accordance with policy CP33.

5.16

Officers therefore consider that the removal of the bus stops from the Pye 3
development obligation is justified. In a wider consideration of the strategic
network improvements taking into consideration the development in the area
comprehensively; there will be suitable bus stop provision to serve all
development sites following S106 obligations from the Greensands and Pye 2
developments. Safe and convenient bus stop infrastructure will therefore be
provided, in accordance with policy.

Page 11

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

5.17

Other Issues
In discussions with the Parish Council they have queried why the site boundary
wall abutting Mather House with the pathway along A417 cannot be cut through
and a shared surface route be provided through this site, taking it away from
the edge of the A417?

5.18

The Council understand that Mather House is under separate ownership and
therefore cannot request that this land is used to form an alternative route from
the Pye 3 development. An alternative route is not required because the
amendment of the crossing to a Puffin crossing with all safety audits in place
has ensured that users of this pathway and crossing do so in a safe manner in
accordance with planning policy.

5.19

Concerns over whether Condition 8 has been discharged or not. Officers did
discharge the condition under application P17/V0251/DIS. The plans submitted
to satisfy this condition, DWG: 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-003 T2 and DWG:
4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-004 T3 did not show the location of the bus stops,
which were to be considered in consultation with the Parish Council. However,
it did consider the location of the crossing, its road markings and path surface
details thereby satisfying all off-site highways works. Therefore, Officers do
consider that this condition has been satisfied.

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
In conclusion Officers recommend that approval is granted for the variation of
condition 8 of planning permission P15/V2560/FUL for the reasons outlined in
the report above and that the condition can now read:
“All off-site highway works, shall be implemented as per the approved plan
5004515-RDG-XX-ST-PL-C-0700-A which includes the creation of a Puffin Type
pedestrian crossing (and associated works), a shared footway/cycleway on the
north side of the A417 and a linking 2m wide footway only along the south side
of the A417 and improved pedestrian crossing facilities in the form of tactile
paving’s and dropped kerbs on White Road. The works shall be undertaken in
accordance with the approved drawings and the approved works shall be
implemented in full before the occupation of any dwelling hereby approved.”
The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies:
CP01
CP02
CP03
CP04
CP05
CP07
CP15
CP22
CP23
CP24

-

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
Settlement Hierarchy
Meeting Our Housing Needs
Housing Supply Ring-Fence
Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area
Housing Mix
Housing Density
Affordable Housing

Page 12

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

CP33
CP35
CP36
CP37
CP38
CP39
CP42
CP43
CP44
CP45
CP46

-

Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility
Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
Electronic communications
Design and Local Distinctiveness
Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
The Historic Environment
Flood Risk
Natural Resources
Landscape
Green Infrastructure
Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
DC5 – Access
Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been
subject to public consultation, and will be examined in the summer. Until
completion of examination, this Local Plan remains at an early stage of
preparation and accordingly its policies have limited weight at present.
Notwithstanding, the following policies are material to the consideration of this
application:
DP16 – Access
Adopted guidance
 Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
 Developer Contributions, Delivering Infrastructure to Support
Development – June 2017
Neighbourhood Plan
There is currently no neighbourhood plan for East Hendred.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Author: Charlotte Brewerton
Tel: 01235 422600
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 13

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0113/FUL

Land to the East of Portway Cottages
Reading Road East Hendred
WANTAGE, OX12 8JD
EAST HENDRED
Variation of Condition 8 of
P15/V2560/FUL to remove the
requirement for bus stops and
associated works on the A417 and
replace the requirement for a Toucan
type pedestrian crossing to a Puffin type
crossing as per technical safety audit
from OCC Highways Authority
Proposed residential development of 46
dwellings (As amended by drawings and
information accompanying agent's emails
of 8 April 2016, 25 May 2016, 12 and 22
August 2016)
Michael Murray
Graham Flint
Charlotte Brewerton

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that this application be granted planning permission
with the following conditions attached and subject to a deed of variation.
Officers note that pre-commencement conditions have been discharged
on the original application and that works at this site have been completed
for the crossing. Therefore the following conditions will be required to be
implemented as per those details submitted and approved in writing by
application P17/V0251/DIS.
1 : Time limit (full application)
2 : Approved plans
3 : Roads and footpaths prior to occupation
4 : Construction traffic management plan
5 : Hours of work
6 : Protection of archaeological features
7 : Archaeological watching brief
8 : Access
9 : Off site highways works
10 : Car parking area

Page 14

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

11 : Bicycle Parking
12 : Noise
13 : Landscaping scheme (Implementation)
14 : Tree protection
15 : Maintenance of open space/play areas
16 : Materials (samples)
17 : Sustainable drainage scheme
18 : Boundary details in accordance with plan
19 : Slab levels (dwellings)
20 : No windows or rooflights (dwelling)
21 : Obscured glazing (opening)
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL
The application comes to committee because it is a major application and the
parish council object.

1.2

The site, which lies within the parish of East Hendred, is currently under
construction for 46 dwellings following planning permission P15/V2560/FUL. All
pre-commencement conditions have been discharged (P17/V0251/DIS). The
site lies within the Lowland Vale landscape designation, with the North Wessex
Downs Area of Outstanding boundary marked by the southern edge of the
A417, opposite the site. A site location plan can be seen below:

1.3

This current application seeks to vary condition 8 of planning permission
P15/V2560/FUL for the development of 46 dwellings on land to the East of
Portway Cottages, Reading Road, East Hendred.

1.4

Condition 8 of application P15/V2560/FUL sought off site highways works to be
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The
original permitted scheme included bus stops with associated infrastructure
and a Toucan type crossing with a cycle/footway along the southern side of the
A417. Oxfordshire County Council, as Highways Authority, requested the
crossing type and requested that the details be secured by condition.

Page 15

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

1.5

Details of the proposed footway were submitted by the applicant during the
application process and showed a shared footway and cycleway on the
southern side of the road. However when the technical drawings for these
works were submitted to Oxfordshire County Council (OCC) and OCC
considered the Road Safety Audit Stage 1/2 dated 18 March 2017 OCC
concluded that on safety grounds a Toucan type crossing (designed for both
cyclists and pedestrians) was not appropriate in this location. In reaching this
conclusion OCC considered the fact that due to the boundary wall of Mather
House abutting the approved pavement. The maximum available highway land is
2m wide and that there would be safety concerns if pedestrian and cyclists
were to use this as a shared surface. Consequently a pedestrian footway and
a Puffin crossing (designed for pedestrians only) would be the safer option

1.6

A similar application (P17/V2002/FUL) to vary Condition 8 of planning application
P15/V2560/FUL was considered and refused at Planning Committee on 13 November
2017 where committee considered that the provision of a 2 metre wide footway would
create a highway issue. The applicant withdrew this application prior to determination
and the consideration of the 2m wide footpath does not form part of the current

application as this footpath has already been approved at this width under the
original planning permission P15/V2560/FUL There is to be no change to this
pathway as approved only that it will now no longer be a shared
footway/cycleway but rather for use by pedestrians only, thereby improving the
situation and safety of the pathway for users. Cyclists will have to dismount and
walk along this stretch. This requirement has come from OCC Highways
Authority and their Safety Audit Team.
1.7

The change from a Toucan crossing to a Puffin crossing is included in the current
application although a crossing has already been approved in this location under

P15/V2560/FUL and there are no changes proposed to the crossing location.
Offsite highway works have already been completed for a crossing in this
location in accordance with the S.278 agreement between OCC and the
developer in December 2017. A copy of the approved S278 is attached at
Appendix 2.These works connect the Pye 3 site to White Road and include
realignment of the road and the construction of the 2m wide footway on the
southern side of the A417 and an upgrade to the pavement at the top of White
Road which allows pedestrians to cross safely and onto the signalised crossing
leading to Pye sites 1 and 2. A plan which shows these works in detail is
attached at Appendix 1.
1.8

Given that there are no changes to the existing planning permission for this
crossing planning permission is not required to seek the changes being sought
from downgrading its type. While the agent has included the crossing details in
the description of the application the details concerned with the crossing have
already been approved via the submission of details to OCC Road Safety
Team and a statement from OCC is attached for information at Appendix
3.The permitted crossing became usable as of 15 June 2018 with the lights
being in operation and the speed limit of this road downgraded to 30mph. The
changes to this crossing involve the type of switches that are to be placed upon
the signalised crossing poles, the signage and markings on the road and these

Page 16

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

details can be approved as part of the offsite highways team safety audit. The
details only need to be submitted to the Planning Department to be signed off
as per condition 8 of the permitted scheme in consultation with the Highways
Team. In addition, these details form part of the S278 Agreement.
1.9

The current application like the previous withdrawn application, seeks the
removal of the bus stops along the A417. These bus stops are a legal
requirement within the S106 entered into as part of the original permission and
officers must consider the impact of their loss in this location.

1.10

The S106 sets out the obligations of Pye Homes in the build out of this site.
Should this application be considered acceptable then the Developer will be
required to enter into a deed of variation with the Council to ensure that the
existing obligations continue subject to any variation resulting from an
approval of this current application

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
A summary of the responses received is set out below. Comments made can
be viewed in full online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk
East Hendred Parish Council

Object
 Removal of bus stops creates
a longer, unsafe passage for
cyclists and pedestrians
 All village facilities are to the
south of A417 so will be
heavily used and safe
passage is paramount
 Full safety Audit should be
carried out that is more
extensive than that proposed
by RSA.
 Small differences to scheme
but net affect has serious
implications for bus
passengers, cyclists and
pedestrians.

Oxfordshire County Council Single No objection subject to conditions.
Response
 In the wider context the
location of bus stops are
better served by being located
elsewhere and associated
with another development, but
in walking distance to this
site.

Page 17

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018



Space does not safely permit
for a Toucan type pedestrian
crossing and the main issue is
that safe passage is facilitated
across the A417 and this can
be done through a Puffin type
crossing.

Additional comments received after
having read EHPC comments and
PBA report:
No Objections

SGN Plant Protection Team

Neighbours

Page 18



The main point of concern is
the streetscape interaction
between the s278 works for
the crossing and the location
of the bus stop.



Through the s278 process
Road Safety Auditing (RSA) is
undertaken and appropriate
design modifications made,
within the general principles,
as established through the
planning process.

No strong views.
 gas pipes are not within the
digging zone of the crossing
and off site highways works.
Object (2)
 Support for cycling
 change in path will aid
congestion by increasing car
use
 increase in pollution and
slowing of traffic on A417
 non-compliance with previous
refusal
 outstanding discharge of
conditions
 bus stops are necessary in
this location
 dangerous crossing
 minimum site lines for 30mph
not 40mph as signage along
road suggests.

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
P17/V0251/DIS - Approved (06/09/2017)
Discharge of Conditions: 3 - levels, 4 - external construction materials, 5 boundaries, 6 - landscaping, 7 - arboricultural method statement, 8 - off-site
highway works, 9 - Travel Plan Statement and Information Pack, 10 Construction Traffic Management Plan, 11 - drainage scheme, 12 - drainage
strategy, 13 - bicycle parking and bin storage, 14 - Archaeological Written
Scheme of Investigation, 15 - Archaeological mitigation, 16 - traffic noise
mitigation, 17 - windows to Plot 17 and 18 - open space and children's play
area on planning permission P15/V2560/FUL - Proposed residential
development of 46 dwellings
P17/V0324/NM - Approved (08/03/2017)
Non material amendment to application ref. P15/V2560/FUL(Proposed
residential development of 46 dwellings) to omit carports provided for plots 2-6
and substituting carports with garages to plots 23-26, 31-34 and 35-42 (As
amended by Drawing Nos: 2836.200 Rev L, .212 Rev D, .213 Rev D and .220
Rev F to increase the size of new garages)
P15/V2560/FUL - Approved (15/11/2016)
Proposed residential development of 46 dwellings (As amended by drawings
and information accompanying agent's emails of 8 April 2016, 25 May 2016, 12
and 22 August 2016)
P16/V0235/O - Refused (30/09/2016)
Outline planning application for the erection of 75 dwellings (10 of which will be
specialist accommodation for older people), communal hub for older persons
accommodation, retention of the existing Bed and Breakfast and associated
open space, with all matters reserved (as clarified by amended application
forms accompanying agent's letter of 6 April 2016 that confirms this application
seeks outline planning permission with all matters reserved and as further
clarified by information accompanying agent's letter of 12 May 2016 and
amended by Drawings accompanying agent's letter of 7 July 2016)
P15/V2328/O - Refused (21/01/2016) - Appeal allowed (18/04/2017)
Outline planning application for the erection of 75 dwellings (10 of which will be
specialist accommodation for older people), communal hub for older person’s
accommodation, retention of the existing Bed and Breakfast and associated
open space, with all matters reserved save for that of access.

4.0
4.1
5.0
5.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT
Not required as the development is not within a sensitive location, fewer than
150 dwellings and less than 5Ha.

MAIN ISSUES
The main considerations in the determination of this application are:
 whether removal of the bus stops would adversely affect the highway
network or inconvenience future occupants of the approved
application site known as Pye 3, for 46 dwellings;

Page 19

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

5.2

Highway safety
On submission of the Section 278 agreement to Oxfordshire County Council
Highways Team it became apparent from the Road Safety Audit that the
inclusion of bus stops along the A417 would cause safety concerns and conflict
with the proposed toucan type crossing from Pye 3 development to the village
of East Hendred.

5.3

In discussion with OCC the applicant (Pye Homes) has sought the removal of
the bus stops within the immediate vicinity of Pye site Phase 3, an obligation
that was required from a signed S106.

5.4

It is understood from having spoken with OCC that the bus companies
travelling along the A417 at present have diverted their existing bus routes from
the A417 (when coming from Didcot to Wantage) and into the village itself. This
is a temporary measure whilst the ongoing developments at Harwell and Milton
take place and will be remedied within 12 months’ time. Currently, there are no
bus services that stop along A417 in close proximity to the Pye developments.

5.5

The committee report of application P15/V2560/FUL noted (at para 6.64) that
‘The A417 is also an important public transport corridor, linking Wantage to
Harwell. The Highways Authority have requested a proportionate contribution
to the improvement of bus services along the A417 and this is again
considered necessary as part of the mitigation of this scheme. Furthermore,
bus stops on the A417 serving the site will be needed”.

5.6

The situation has not changed, Officers agree that with the additional
residential sites currently being built along A417 additional public transport
infrastructure is required.

5.7

The Parish Council have submitted their comments alongside having a
consultant consider their issues. Peter Brett Associates (PBA) have stated that
a point of concern is ‘Now that there have been changes to the (highway)
scheme, there will be different operational requirements on the highway, and
the safety of the proposals should now be considered afresh.’

5.8

At the present time there are existing bus stops along White Road and further
within the village itself. In the medium and longer term, it is expected that some
buses will revert to travelling straight along A417. Once it is known when this
will happen, the County Council will install a pair of bus stops on A417, to the
west of the White Road junction. These will be funded using developer
contributions held from the adjacent ‘Pye 2’ site. In addition to these monies
there is also funding from the Greensands development via an obligation
sought through a signed S106. It is intended that as the Greensands site
comes forward, contributions from that site will be used to provide bus stops,
further east along A417. Therefore, two different sets of bus stops will be
provided for along this stretch of road to provide for all future residents of the
Pye development sites 1, 2 and 3 and the Greensands development as it
comes forward.

Page 20

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

5.9

The Featherbed Lane Improvement Scheme (P15/V0774/LDP) will provide a
new roundabout junction on A417 and the bus stops would be located to the
west of this junction to ensure that they are within walking distance of all new
developments.

5.10

OCC responded on the previous application (P17/V2002/FUL) that whilst the
buses are running on a temporary route, during the build out of these sites and
the reconfiguration of the road, the bus stops cannot be implemented safely
within the immediate vicinity of this development. Whilst it is noted that
additional bus services will be needed along this stretch of road, the bus
infrastructure sought as part of the Pye 3 development would be an
overprovision and cannot be implemented safely or without causing conflict
with other improvements along this road.

5.11

The previously refused scheme (P17/V2002/FUL) for the removal of bus stops
received 2 letters of objection from local bus providers. This application has
had no comments made from either party. The bus providers, in discussion
with OCC, understand that bus stops and local bus provision will be placed
along this stretch of the A417 as per the strategic approach to development
and no comments have been made to this effect. All providers who previously
made representations on P17/V2002/FUL were consulted.

5.12

Paul Yoward, Senior Highways Officer at OCC has considered the amended
plans including the details of the crossing type, the removal of the bus stops
and the PBA report submitted on behalf of East Hendred Parish Council. He
concludes that there are no highways objections to the scheme now proposed
for offsite highways works.

5.13

The Road Safety Audit has considered the crossing type, its location and the
location of bus stops in context along the A417 and safety audits levels 1, 2
and 3 fully consider the pedestrian route to the bus stops outside the Pye 1 and
2 developments is accessible in this location. Therefore, the context of the road
and the amendments to it have been fully considered.

5.14

Planning Officers have no evidence that the change in crossing type and
the removal of the bus stops would pose a safety risk to pedestrians of the Pye
3 development site. Nor is there evidence that pedestrians would use the north
side of A417 rather than walk the safer route using two crossings to access the
Pye 3 development. This is an assumed route.

5.15

The permitted crossing provides for safe access for pedestrians of the Pye 3
development to the village of East Hendred and onto bus stop provision outside
of the adjacent Pye 1 and 2 developments.

5.16

Officers therefore consider that the removal of the bus stops from the Pye 3
development obligation is justified. In a wider consideration of the strategic
network improvements taking into consideration the development in the area
comprehensively; there will be suitable bus stop provision to serve all

Page 21

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

development sites following S106 obligations from the Greensands and Pye 2
developments. Safe and convenient bus stop infrastructure will therefore be
provided, in accordance with policy.
5.17

Other Issues
In discussions with the Parish Council they have queried why the site boundary
wall abutting Mather House with the pathway along A417 cannot be cut through
and a shared surface route be provided through this site, taking it away from
the edge of the A417.

5.18

The Council understand that Mather House is under separate ownership and
therefore cannot request that this land is used to form an alternative route from
the Pye 3 development. An alternative route is not required because the
amendment of the crossing to a Puffin crossing with all safety audits in place
has ensured that users of this pathway and crossing do so in a safe manner in
accordance with planning policy.

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
In conclusion Officers recommend that approval is granted for the variation of
condition 8 of planning permission P15/V2560/FUL for the reasons outlined in
the report above and that the condition can now read:
“A scheme for all off-site highway works, to include a timetable for their
implementation, must be submitted to and agreed in writing by the local
planning authority. The submitted scheme shall include the creation of a Puffin
Type pedestrian crossing (and associated works), a shared footway/cycleway
on the north side of the A417 and a linking 2m wide footway only along the
south side of the A417 and improved pedestrian crossing facilities in the form of
tactile paving’s and dropped kerbs on White Road. The works shall be
undertaken in accordance with the approved drawings and the approved works
shall be implemented in full before the occupation of any dwelling hereby
approved.”
The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 Policies:
CP01
CP02
CP03
CP04
CP05
CP07
CP15
CP22
CP23
CP24
CP33

-

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Cooperation on Unmet Housing Need for Oxfordshire
Settlement Hierarchy
Meeting Our Housing Needs
Housing Supply Ring-Fence
Providing Supporting Infrastructure and Services
Spatial Strategy for South East Vale Sub-Area
Housing Mix
Housing Density
Affordable Housing
Promoting Sustainable Transport and Accessibility

Page 22

Appendix 1
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 01 August 2018

CP35
CP36
CP37
CP38
CP39
CP42
CP43
CP44
CP45
CP46

-

Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
Electronic communications
Design and Local Distinctiveness
Design Strategies for Strategic and Major Development Sites
The Historic Environment
Flood Risk
Natural Resources
Landscape
Green Infrastructure
Conservation and Improvement of Biodiversity

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 Saved Policies
DC5 – Access
Emerging Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2
A publication draft of the Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 2 has been
subject to public consultation, and will be examined in the summer. Until
completion of examination, this Local Plan remains at an early stage of
preparation and accordingly its policies have limited weight at present.
Notwithstanding, the following policies are material to the consideration of this
application:
DP16 – Access
Adopted guidance
 Vale of White Horse Design Guide SPD – March 2015
 Developer Contributions, Delivering Infrastructure to Support
Development – June 2017
Neighbourhood Plan
There is currently no neighbourhood plan for East Hendred.
National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance (NPPG)
Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010
Provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998
Author: Charlotte Brewerton
Tel: 01235 422600
Email: planning@whitehorsedc.gov.uk

Page 23

Appendix 2

OXFORDSHIRE COUNTY COUNCIL
TECHNICAL AUDIT CERTIFICATE
SCHEME: Reading Road, East Hendred
CONSULTANT: Gemma Design

DEVELOPER: Pye Homes
DRAWINGS AUDITED
 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-004 Street Lighting, Road Signs
and Road Markings Sheet 1
 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-007 Street Lighting, Road Signs
and Road Markings Sheet 2
 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-018 Section S278 Legal Plan
 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-031 Adoptable Road Construction
Details Sheet 1
 4229-GDL-XX-HW-DR-C-032 Adoptable Road Construction
Details Sheet 2

Certificate Number: 557
Date: 05.06.17
Circulation
Developers
Consultant
File 10.2.199.7

Page 24

DISCLAIMER NOTES:
93.78

Appendix 3

93.67

· THIS DOCUMENT IS COPYRIGHT OF THE ORIGINATOR AND MUST BE TREATED AS
CONFIDENTIAL

· THIS DOCUMENT MUST NOT BE ALTERED, REPRODUCED OR DISTRIBUTED WITHOUT
PRIOR WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE ORIGINATOR

· THIS DOCUMENT MUST NOT BE ALTERED - THE ORIGINATOR ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY
FOR ANY DISCREPANCIES ARISING AS A RESULT OF THE ORIGINATORS INFORMATION
BEING ALTERED BY OTHERS
· ANY DISCREPANCY MUST BE REPORTED TO THE ORIGINATOR
· DO NOT SCALE THIS DOCUMENT - USE FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY
· ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF ANY RELATED
WORKS
· THIS DOCUMENT MUST BE READ IN CONJUNCTION WITH ALL SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS
PRODUCED BY THE ORIGINATOR AND OTHER PROJECT DISCIPLINES
· THE ORIGINATOR ACCEPTS NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF BACKGROUND
INFORMATION PRODUCED BY THIRD PARTIES - THIS MUST BE TREATED AS INDICATIVE
ONLY
· USERS OF THIS DOCUMENT ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR CHECKING WHICH REVISION IS
CURRENT
· THE DOCUMENT STATUS "INFORMATION" OR "PRELIMINARY", INDICATES THAT THIS
DRAWING IS FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY - THE ORIGINATOR WILL ACCEPT NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE COMPLETENESS OF INFORMATION UNDER THIS STATUS
· THE DOCUMENT STATUS "RECORD" OR "AS BUILT" HAS BEEN PREPARED, IN PART, BASED
UPON INFORMATION FURNISHED BY OTHERS. WHILE THIS INFORMATION IS BELIEVED TO BE
RELIABLE, THE ORIGINATOR ASSUMES NO RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE ACCURACY OF THIS
"RECORD" OR "AS BUILT" DOCUMENT OR FOR ANY ERRORS OR OMISSIONS THAT MAY HAVE
BEEN INCORPORATED INTO IT AS A RESULT OF INCORRECT INFORMATION PROVIDED TO
THE ORIGINATOR. THOSE RELYING ON THE "RECORD" OR "AS BUILT" DOCUMENT ARE
ADVISED TO OBTAIN INDEPENDENT VERIFICATION OF ITS ACCURACY

93.75
93.65

Refer to drawing
4229-GDL-XX-D-DR-C-007 for pumping
station compound and access road

1080N

94.03
93.96

93.72

Landscape Buffer

93.69

93.78

93.78

93.72

EF

93.26

93.52

CDM REGULATIONS 2015
SIGNIFICANT OR NON-OBVIOUS RISKS AND RISKS WHICH ARE DIFFICULT TO
MANAGE ARE IDENTIFIED ON THIS DRAWING USING THE FOLLOWING SYMBOL
IDENTIFIED TO THE RIGHT WITH BRIEF ACCOMPANYING TEXT. FOR FURTHER
DETAILS OF THE RISKS IDENTIFIED BY DESIGNERS, REFERENCE SHOULD BE MADE
TO CDM HAZARD REGISTER.

93.08

93.40
94.09

DRAWING NOTES:

EF

93.67

EF

92.94

94.07

92.88

92.87
92.65

92.27
91.89

EF

91.82

EF

91.83

KERBING KEY
93.85
93.84

1060N
94.16

HB2 - 125x255 HB2 full face kerb
BN - 125x150 BN kerb 50mm face
DK - 125x150 BN dropped kerb
EF - 50x150 EF edging laid flush
T - Transition kerb as required
CS - square edged channel block

EF

93.80

EF

EF

ST20
94.214

93.70

EF

EF

93.94

94.16

93.55

EF

EF

93.47

93.21

93.33

94.25

93.04

93.13

92.92

FINISHES KEY

EF

EF

92.78

92.52

P29

92.25

DK

BN
94.16

EF
EF

93.81

93.68

93.78
94.23

94.25

94.05

94.30
94.29

94.27

P17

94.20
94.28 94.20
94.28
94.20

93.54

P18

94.04

P19

EF

EF

EF

93.24

EF

EF

93.10

cps 1

93.94

9 cps
19
cps 1
9 cps
19
BN

1040N
96.93

CS
BN

93.83 BN

BN

cps 17

94.34

cps 17

94.00
94.34
94.15

cps 16

cps 16

cps 16

cps 16

94.31

96.12

0 cp BN
s 20
cps 2
0 cp
sBN20

cps 27

EF

93.13

ST21
93.18

92.99

BN

P27

92.92

EF

92.82

BN

92.59

P20

MB

EF

CS

DK
93.63

MB

EF
BN
EF

CS

HB2

EF

94.30

EF

EF

BN

93.49

93.13

93.32

92.97

BN

V

93.47

T

HB2

MB

V

1000N

T

HB2

T

HB2

EF

MB

EF

P15

93.87

93.83

MB

HB2

T

93.59

MB

EF
EF
MB

EF

EF
92.92

MB

93.85

94.00

94.04
94.01
94.02
94.01
94.03
94.00
94.01
94.02

94.03

94.00
93.97

94.03

94.00
94.01

BN

BN

MB

HB2
BN

BN

BN
960N

T3

cps 2

93.55

93.60

cps 4

94.08

P4

93.52

BN

BN

P6

P5

BN

93.46
93.56
93.53

93.97

T5

93.93

93.92

93.78

102.57

4

1

93.93

102.15

93.89

T7

95.75

93.68

93.73

93.66

93.65

93.67
93.58

93.64
93.60
93.76
93.92
93.61
93.52 93.61
93.60
93.79
93.55
93.56
93.51
93.60
93.51
93.51

93.59
93.72
93.64

93.52

93.54
93.59
93.57
93.55
93.55
93.59
93.46
93.45
93.56
93.42
93.40
93.42

93.42

93.46
93.47

93.79
93.59 93.66

93.42
93.40

T

93.76

93.76

MB
HB2

93.41

EF

EF

A

B

93.68

93.60

93.62

93.70

93.65

93.72

93.71

T

93.67

93.65

93.71

ST22
93.663

T

D
A
O
R
ING

READ
93.66

93.58

93.64

93.67

93.65

93.59

93.90

93.92

93.61

93.67

93.76

93.64

93.59

93.59

EF

93.66

93.64

93.65

93.63

93.60

93.59

93.57
93.72

93.88

93.57

93.79

93.60

93.57
93.74

93.77

93.55

93.58

93.58

93.61

93.56
93.52

93.81

93.54
93.66

93.56

93.82

93.60

93.63

93.72
93.64
93.94

93.67

93.58

IC93.43
(TL)

ST05
93.547

93.64

IC (TL)

Virgin

93.40 93.42

93.65

93.36

93.62

93.58

93.66
93.63
93.79

93.53
93.57

93.70

IN ASSOCIATION WITH:

93.60

T

T

T

T
93.56
93.73

93.51
93.66
93.69
93.74

EF

93.66

PROJECT:

93.61

EF

Land to the East of
Portway Cottages
East Hendred

920N

93.22

93
.2
8

92.99

92.95
T
93.03
92.93
92.92

93.12

93.14
93.14

93.27

2.00

93.14

93.03

93.08
93.11

93.00
T

93.05
93.03 92.90
93.03

T

N

CS

CS

93.05
93.09

93.08

93.15

Surface Finishes

93.29
93.04

93.12

93.27

TITLE:

93.12

93.32

93.23

93.45

93.40
93.36
93.21
93.32

93.10

93.40

93.29

93.48

EF

93.20

93.42 93.39
93.26
93.44

93.44

93.43 93.45

ENG:

CSE: PR

ICSE:

INITIAL ISSUE:

SW

EF

SCALE: 1:250

@ A0
14/09/2017

92.97

STATUS:

T

PRELIMINARY

92.84
900N
95.26

98.22

95.26

30

WWW.RIDGE.CO.UK

CLIENT:

93.68

93.65 93.46

93.65
93.53

ST03
93.505

93.70

93.33

93.17

93.27

93.55

93.63

93.70
93.73

93.38

93.35
93.37
93.43

01993 815000

93.91

93.62

93.41

2.00

BT

TEL:

THE COWYARDS
BLENHEIM PARK
OXFORD ROAD
WOODSTOCK, OX20 1QR

93.51

93.35

93.55

DRAWN

93.74

93.82

93.74

93.52

93.54

93.47

93.65

93.60

93.63

93.62

93.57

93.64

BT

DATE

RIDGE

93.61

93.61

93.65

93.59

PR

93.57

93.64
93.62

DESCRIPTION

19/09/2017

ORIGINATOR:

93.66

93.60

93.62

93.70

TACTILE PAVING DETAIL AMENDED AS PER OCC
COMMENTS

REV

M

MB
HB2
93.62

EF
93.29

93.45

93.44

HB2

93.85

EF

93.79

93.65

93.71

CS

93.41 IC
93.41

93.27

93.44

93.68

93.71

T

93.47

93.50
HB2

93.38

T

93.41

93.53

93.39

T

CS

93.77

93.53

93.50

EF

93.44

EF

93.71

93.53

93.39

93.45

93.54

EF

93.12

93.37

EF
EF

CS
T

EF

93.42

93.36

EF

93.71

93.60
93.80

93.42

93.48

EF

93.94

Virgin

93.56

93.58
93.58

93.64

93.77

93.79

EF
EF

93.31

T
CS

93.46

T

EF

93.84

93.58

93.38

93.67

EF

93.68

93.69
93.75
93.74
93.49
93.52
93.49
93.69
93.49
93.68
93.47
93.44
93.42
93.41
93.42
93.42

EF

93.81

93.85

T9

93.63

EF EF

EF

EF

MB

93.75

B
MB M

93.58
EF

93.47
93.75
93.63
93.78
93.4493.47

EF

93.75

T11

T8

Portway
Cottages

93.69

EF

93.57

93.48

T10

93.81

93.70

EF

93.66
940N

93.23

EF

EF

HB2

T

93.66

95.72

93.68

93.55
93.51
93.55

96.85

93.85
93.85
93.84
93.84
93.85
93.82
93.83
93.81

HB2

93.55

97.70

98.28

EF

93.54

EF

EF

EF

93.63

EF
93.87

Lynwood

MB

EF

93.82

98.80

EF EF

EF

P39

P37

92.97

EF

EF

EF

100.77

102.15

102.12

102.62

EF

EF

93.66

P3

P2

P1

T6

EF

93.52

93.52

98.30

93.89

98.83

CS

MB

93.92

92.85

BN

BN

B

93.99

P38

93.47

BN
T HB2

93.06

EF

V

P36

92.82

EF

P40

93.10

93.24

cps 5
T

EF 92.89

93.01
93.07

EF

MB

93.96

cps 4

T4

cps 3

93.93

cps 2

93.99
94.05
94.00 94.03

EF

cps 7
cps 6

EF

94.12

93.13

92.89

EF

EF
DK

CS

BN

cps 38

cps 1BN

V
HB2

P35

EF

MB

BN

cps 8

93.54

92.82

BN

HB2

EF
93.01

cps 37

HB2

93.97
96.67

cps 9

P7

92.94

EF

P10

P9

P8

92.88

CS

cps 39

cps 1

93.93

cps 10

EF

cps 3

94.13

93.10

P31

HB2

BN

cps 40

94.11

93.38

T

HB2

92.91

93.04

vBN

BN
94.01
94.01
94.02
94.01
94.02
94.03
94.02

93.00

P41

EF

P33 P32

CS

CS

BN

EF

93.48

CS

BN
BN

EF

93.59

EF

cps 11

93.96

94.04

94.15

HB2

93.62

BN

P34

T

T

EF

cps 45
cps 46

DK

MB

CS

cps 11

94.07

cps 44

92.76

HB2

EF

EF

MB

94.02
94.07

EF

EF

EF

EF

BN

P42

EF

M

94.24
94.10

M
B

94.10
94.09

93.69

T

92.84

MB

93.70

P13

EF

T

EF

Location of highway marker blocks

92.83

T

EF

EF

cps 43

Site boundary

MB

980N

BN

T
CS

HB2

EF

HB2

EF

EF

VHB2

V

Corduroy Paving

EF

MB

MB

94.19

94.02

cps 13 cps 13

cps 12 cps 12

94.18

EF

HB2

Buff Tactile Paving (Uncontrolled Crossing)
EF

EF

cps 41

EF

43-46

EF

EF

92.62

V

cps 42

P12

T

Red Tactile Paving (Controlled Crossing)

EF

HB2

92.97

92.77

EF

DK

93.10

EF
EF

Bodpave porous plastic paving grid system or
similar

EF

EF
EF

EFB
M

cps 36

P14

660E

640E

94.15

V

93.36

cps 31

92.59

T

CS

T

cps 35

P11

93.90

94.07

93.49

CS

BN

EF

T

93.92
94.13

92.70

EF

EF

CS

T

94.26
93.98

cps 32

BN

V
HB2

MB

BN

CS T

T

BN

Private Paving Slabs (Refer To Landscape
Architect For Construction Details)

cps 33

HB2

EF

EF

HB2

EF

BN

BN

BN

EF

EF

EF

EF

V

EF

93.73

BN

EF

94.26

94.23

CS

MB
92.97

EF

EF

94.15

EF

EF

CS

HB2

MB

EF

93.08

MB

EF

cps 24

T

cp
s 14

cp
s 14

EF

MB

94.22

V

EF
CS

EF

94.09

EF

93.26

94.16

93.98

HB2

cps 25 cps 25

V

CS
T

EF
93.93

MB

cps 26 cps 26

93.66

DK

c

94.31

T

CS

M

s 23
cps 23 cp

T

CS

EF

B

EF

cps 34

HB2

MB

cps 24

MB

94.24

93.73

MB

15

EF

B

ps

EF

EF

High PSV Surfacing (Min 65 PSV)

MB

P24

P23

BN

M

Page 25

P16

EF

BN

BN

CS

BN

MB

680E

660E

640E

EF

c

EF

CS

CS

EF

93.81

HB2

T

CS

15

ps

93.88

T2 94.05

MB

CS

94.26

1000N

EF

EF

B

MB

BN

M

MB

MB

MB

94.36

94.17

Existing Adoptable Carriageway To
Be Broken Out & Topsoil / Seeded

MB
92.75 EF

BN

94.33

94.18

92.62

BN

MB

P26

P25

MB

HB2

93.99

T1

BN

BN

BN

MB

EF

94.29

Private Hogging Footway (Refer To Landscape
Architect For Construction Details)

EF
92.70

P22

BN

Private Bituminous Access Track Construction

P30

EF

EF

93.04

93.94

Private Bituminous Footway Construction with
chips rolled in to the surface (Refer To
Landscape Architect For Construction Details)

cps 30

BN

92.68

94.37

93.86

92.45

cps 22

93.39

EF

1020N

94.17

Private Permeable Paving Road.

92.32

93.39

93.73

93.92

cps 30

BN
93.99

95.83

cps 22

92.46

BN

BN

93.88

cps 27

BN

cps 2

BN

BN

CS

cps 21

Adoptable Rumble Strip

92.60

BN

cps 21

EF

EF

BN

V

Adoptable Bituminous Footway/
Cycleway/ Vehicle Crossover

BN

92.73

93.58

BN

94.02

94.33

93.68

93.82

cps 17

cps 17

96.61

cps 29

MB

94.33

94.15

s 18
cps 18 cp
ps 18
BN c
cps 18

97.60

BN

MB

94.28

93.89
96.47

cps 28

BN

CS

CS

94.36

cps 29

92.94

96.40

94.34

cps 28

92.93

BN

96.92

94.29

BN

93.35

EF

94.02

94.26

92.12

BN

P28

P21

EF

MB

ST04
94.200

93.90

MB

Future footpath link

BCP

93.90
93.94

BN

Adoptable Bituminous Road/
Carriageway Widening

92.13

Mather House

2

0

2

SCALE 1:250

4

6

8

10
m

DRAWING No:
PROJECT:

ORG:

ZONE:

LEVEL:

TYPE:

5004515 RDG XX ST PL

ROLE:

NUMBER:

REV:

C 0700 A

Appendix 4

Page 26

Page 27

Agenda Item 7
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0492/FUL
The Old Gaol, Bridge Street, Abingdon
Oxfordshire, OX14 3HE
ABINGDON
Proposed change of use of section of ground
floor space to form 3 no. apartments.
Retrospective consent for erection of blockwork
partitions to same space. (Additional information
regarding marketing and sound insulation
submitted 10/7/2018).
Katie Finch
Helen Pighills
Cranbourne Homes Ltd
Penny Silverwood

RECOMMENDATION
It is recommended that authority to grant planning permission is
delegated to the head of planning subject to:
 Completion of a unilateral undertaking between the applicant and
Oxfordshire County Council to secure the removal of the residential
units from eligibility for parking permits in the adjacent controlled
parking zone.
 The following planning conditions:
Standard
1. Approved plans.
Within two months of permission
2. Details of grate covering courtyard of unit 3.
Compliance
3. Sound insulation mitigation measures.
4. Obscure glazing.
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

The application concerns part of the ground floor of The Old Gaol, Abingdon. It
is located to the south west of the River Thames within the town centre of
Abingdon. Vehicular access to The Old Gaol is obtained via Bridge Street to
the north east.
The Old Gaol is Grade II listed and situated with the Abingdon Town Centre
Conservation Area.

1.3

1.4

This application is referred to committee as it was called in by Councillor S.
Lovatt and Councillor Pighills.

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of part of the
ground floor of the original building from restaurant space to form three

Page 28

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

residential apartments. External works are limited to the insertion of a grate
across the top of the courtyard to one of the flats. The proposed development
would consist of two 1-bedroom and one 2-bedroom units. This application is
partly retrospective as works to construct blockwork partitions to form the
dividing walls of the flats have already been carried out. Officers are aware
that works have ceased on site to await the outcome of this application.
1.5

Additional information has been provided and re-consulted on during the
course of the application including details of the previous marketing of the
restaurant unit and a sound insultation assessment.

1.6

An associated listed building consent application relating to the internal works
has been submitted and will also be considered by this committee. The
application reference is: P18/V0493/LB.

1.7

A site location plan is below:

1.8

Extracts of the application plans are attached at Appendix 1.

Page 29

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Below is a summary of the responses received to the submission. A full copy of
all comments made can be viewed online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.
Abingdon
Town Council

Objection. Comments can be summarised as:
 The original planning permission was granted on the
condition that there would still be public open space.
That condition should be upheld.
 If restaurant use is not possible alternative uses which
would ensure public access, other than a change of
use to residential should be sought
 The size of the apartments is too small.
 Continued concerns with the implementation of the
original development with regards to affordable
housing and access

Conservation
Officer
County
Archaeologist
Vale Highways
Liaison
Officer
(Oxfordshire
County
Council)

No objection, recommended conditions.

Housing
Development

Waste
Management
Officer (DC)
Economic
Development

No objection.
No objection. Comments can be summarised as:
 Site is located in a town centre location with all of the
associated facilities, including public transport
opportunity in the vicinity
 The adjacent Controlled Parking Zone (CPZ) is
oversubscribed for permits and therefore it is
reasonable that the new residential units do not add
additional on-street pressure in this sustainable
location
 The units will need to be removed from eligibility for
permits within the CPZ via a Unilateral Undertaking
with Oxfordshire County Council.
 The application should be considered in the context of
the previously implemented development which
provided 61 apartments
 An affordable housing contribution of 35% is required,
equating to a single dwelling
 A financial contribution should be payable in lieu of
the affordable unit.
No objection.

Support. Comments can be summarised as:
 The issues identified by the applicant in letting the
units are consistent with the findings of the council’s
Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan 2017 to
2020 – businesses need affordable and quality space
in the right location.

Page 30

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018



Air Quality

It is unfortunate that the high fit out costs were an
issue in marketing
 The Old Gaol could be a prime evening and leisure
location in Abingdon if the available space was both
affordable and of high quality.
 Due to the need to improve Abingdon’s evening
economy, minded to support the creation of a
café/wine bar.
 Would not look to support an application in the near
future to convert the café/ wine bar into apartments
after these three units are sold and occupied.
No objection, recommended condition.

Env.
Protection
Team
The Friends
of Abingdon
Civic Society
Councillor
Pighills

No objection, recommended condition

Local
residents

Responses from local residents in support of the application
can be summarised as:
 Old Gaol Serviced Apartments (serviced apartment
business running from the site) support the additional
unit to allow the developer to fund and open a wine
and café bar which will compliment and enhance the
services available to the residents and guests and
encourage the public to visit the riverside garden.
 Abingdon has missed its chance for further town
centre development
 This planning application addresses the need for a
mixture of uses that will promote vibrancy and vitality
in the town centre
 The units will remain empty and sad looking if left as
is.
 The wider implication of using the space in this way
will be of significant benefit to the overall development
and its residents.
 The inclusion of a café/wine bar is exciting and will
certainly add to the appeal of The Old Gaol and this
corner of Abingdon.
 The addition of the residentail units will have no
adverse impact on the quality of life for the current
residents
 Fully compatible with the originally approved
residential scheme

No objection.

Object. Comments can be summarised as:
 Share the concerns of Abingdon Town Council and
the Friends of Abingdon Civic Society

Page 31

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018






The openings for windows and doors would remain
unchanged and aesthetically the apartments present
no challenge to the form of the buildings.
Cranbourne Homes have been proactive in working
with specialist restaurant agents to try and find either
independent or national restaurants to lease the three
commercial units over the last three years
Cranbourne’s agreement to fund a wine and tapas bar
in lieu of converting part of the commercial space into
residential use is a positive initiative towards
improving the amenities for residents and the public
and will encourage the use of the public garden.

Responses objecting to the application can be summarised
as:
 Where are the extra three parking spaces for the
three new apartments? Parking is at a premium on all
new developments and three extra spaces should be
provided as a minimum
 This is a prime location to meet demand for local
community groups to meet, combined with an eating
establishment.
 Other businesses; Costa and Annie’s Boathouse have
been successful in proving the commercial viability of
the location.
 Cranbourne Homes never wanted tenants so
deliberately obstructed viable proposals to have the
whole site for high priced housing.
 There is no evidence that Cranbourne Homes made
any viable attempts to make the ground floor open to
the public and provide public benefit.
 Object strongly to this application being considered
until all monies due from Cranbourne Homes in
respect of afforable housing payment have been paid.
 There should be a guarantee of a replacement Willow
tree to replace the removed tree.
Petition from
residents of
The Old Gaol
The Old Gaol
Manager

A petition with responses from 57 residents of The Old Gaol
has been submitted in support of the proposed development.
The management company of The Old Gaol development
has provided a copy of a letter sent to the Friends of
Abingdon Civic Society clarifying concerns raised in their
original response including the public access to the riverside
garden. The letter states that it is aware of the S106
obligations with regards to public access and refers to times
in which the decision was made to not open a gate (Route 2
in the legal agreement) due to risks to young children playing
unattended close to the river. The letter confirms that this
route has now been opened.

Page 32

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

3.0
3.1

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Planning permission was granted in 2009 for the redevelopment of The Old
Gaol site to provide a total of 61 residential units both within the original
buildings and construction of a new building, as well as the provision of
restaurant space, café space and the provision of public access. Officers are
aware that construction works on all residential units are completed. The
approved restaurant space on the ground floor of The Old Gaol remains vacant
and internal work are not complete. The restaurant and café space at 1 Bridge
street remains vacant and internal works are incomplete. Costa Coffee is
operating from 2 Bridge Street. Key applications relating to this permission are
below:
P09/V1462/DIS - Approved (03/02/2010)
Request for compliance with conditions for Application No: ABG/20698,
Conditions 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 23, 24, 32 and 34 and Application No:
ABG/20698/1-LB, Conditions 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9.
P09/V1660/DIS - Approved (30/11/2009)
Request for compliance with conditions for Application No: ABG/20698,
Conditions 5, 15, 22, 26, 27 & 29.
P08/V1238/LB - Approved (19/03/2009)
Demolition of Sports Hall, Swimming Pool, No 4 Turn Again Lane, part of
Police Station and garage block. Construction of new building containing 43
apartments. Conversion of Old Gaol to restaurant and 10 apartments.
Conversion of Police Station to communal use and 3 dwellings. Conversion
and extension of 25 & 27 and 1& 2 Bridge View to 2 restaurants, a cafe take
away and 5 apartments. New vehicular access onto Bridge Street. Pedestrian
link to East St Helens Street via Twickenham House. Underground parking for
68 cars and 132 cycles.
P08/V1237 - Approved (19/03/2009)
Demolition of Sports Hall, Swimming Pool, No 4 Turn Again Lane, part of
Police Station and garage block. Construction of new building containing 43
apartments. Conversion of Old Gaol to restaurant and 10 apartments.
Conversion of Police Station to communal use and 3 dwellings. Conversion
and extension of 25 & 27 and 1& 2 Bridge View to 2 restaurants, a cafe take
away and 5 apartments. New vehicular access onto Bridge Street. Pedestrian
link to East St Helens Street via Twickenham House. Underground parking for
68 cars and 132 cycles.

3.2

Pre-application History
There is no relevant pre-application history associated with this development.

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES

The proposal is not EIA development.

The relevant planning considerations in the determination of this application
are:

Page 33

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

1. The principle of development
2. Affordable housing
3. Visual impact and impact upon setting of Listed Buildings and the
Conservation Area
4. Residential amenity
5. Public access
6. Traffic, parking and highway safety
7. Enforcement matters
8. Community Infrastructure Levy
9. Other considerations
5.2

The principle of development
The site is located within the main town centre of Abingdon, therefore policies
CP3 and CP4 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 confirm that there is a
presumption in favour of sustainable development in this location.
The ground floor of The Old Gaol building has planning consent for use as a
restaurant with associated toilets and back of house facilities from the planning
permission granted in 2009 for the redevelopment of the entire site (application
ref. P08/V1237). Whilst the restaurant space has never been used as such the
planning permission was implemented and the majority of works are complete
except for internal works to fit out this restaurant space in question and the
restaurant and café space at 1 Bridge Street.

5.3

This application seeks consent to the change the use of part of the ground floor
into three residential units. The remaining floorspace (approximately 415
square metres) will be retained to be used as a restaurant/ café/ bar.

5.4

The Development Brief for the previous redevelopment of The Old Gaol
specified the main aims including ‘To ensure a mixture of uses on the site that
will promote vibrancy and vitality in this part of the town centre’.

5.5

One of the strategic objectives of the Local Plan 2031 is to maintain and
enhance the vitality and viability of existing town centres, ensuring they remain
active and vibrant in light of changing trends. This is also emphasised within
paragraph 85 of the NPPF.

5.6

The site is not located within either the primary or secondary shopping
frontages where saved policies from the Local Plan 2011 seek to restrict some
changes of use from retail uses.

5.7

Policy S4 saved from Local Plan 2011 confirms that change of use to
residential accommodation will be permitted provided that there would be no
demonstrable harm caused to the living conditions of neighbouring residents in
terms of noise, cooking smells or general disturbance.

5.8

The Old Gaol is a Grade II listed building. The NPPF confirms at paragraphs
193-196 that where there is any identified harm to the significance of a heritage
asset, where this harm is less than substantial, it should be weighed against
the public benefits including securing its optimum viable use.

Page 34

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

5.9

The applicant has submitted information to demonstrate the marketing effort
undergone in an attempt to secure tenants for the three restaurant units. The
report by Fleurets (a leisure property specialist company) indicates that
marketing efforts started in June 2015 and included the erection of property to
let boards at the site, full details on Fleurets website, advertisements in the
Caterer (a specialist hospitality magazine) targeted mailshots to local, regional
and national operators and direct contact with identified potential operators. A
flexible approach was adopted; rental offers were encouraged, rent
concessions were available and negotiations on fitting out works were offered.
In total the marketing of all three units generated in excess of 1,000 requests
for details from prospective tenants and circa. 10,000 sets of details were
forwarded via mailshots to prospective lessees.

5.10

The report identifies that the two smaller units along Bridge Street (one is now
occupied by Costa Coffee) generated more interest that the larger unit within
the ground floor of The Old Gaol. The report identifies the following issues in
attempting to let the larger restaurant unit:
1. The viability of Abingdon for large restaurant premises
2. The location i.e. out of the prime town centre, with no main high street
visibility
3. The anticipated fit out costs approximately £750,000
4. Competition from nearby schemes including the Westgate in Oxford and
the Orchard Centre in Didcot.
The District Council’s Economic Development team have commented on the
application and confirm that the above issues are consistent with the findings of
the Business and Innovation Strategy Action Plan 2017 to 2020.

5.11

The report continues that after failure to let this unit, the marketing campaign
was revised with the option of subdivision of the larger unit into smaller units,
concessionary rent and the offer of a joint venture with the developers.

5.12

The report summarises the general climate for the restaurant market,
identifying a number of national operators experiencing difficulties.

5.13

Officers consider that the principle of residential use in this location is
acceptable. It is within the built area of Abingdon but is not located on a primary
or secondary frontage. The information submitted with the application confirms
that despite concentrated marketing efforts over a period of more than three
years, there has been no confirmed buyer or leaser of the main restaurant unit
and it remains vacant. Whilst the majority of the redevelopment of the site has
been completed and therefore the future of the heritage asset can be
considered secure, officers are mindful of the optimum viable use of the
entirety of the asset. It has been demonstrated that marketing efforts have
failed to secure the current consented use of the large restaurant space and
officers are aware that the unit being vacant, along with the display of
marketing boards over a sustained period may in itself be harmful to the vitality
and viability of the town centre.

5.14

The applicant has noted that the income generated from the proposed three
residential units will fund the fit out and setting up on a café/ bar to be operated

Page 35

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

from the remaining restaurant space by the applicants themselves. The
Economic Development team has commented that the opening of the café/ bar
would contribute to improving Abingdon’s evening economy. Officers
acknowledge that the opening and use of the remainder of this unit could
improve the vitality and viability of the town centre and may also stimulate
interest in the other remaining vacant unit along Bridge Street.
5.15

Affordable Housing
Core Policy 24 of the adopted Local Plan 2031 Part 1 states that the Council
will seek 35% affordable housing on all sites capable of a net gain of eleven or
more dwellings. It continues in stating that planning permission will be refused
for development proposals where it appears that a larger site has been subdivided into smaller development parcels in order to avoid the requirements of
the affordable housing policy.

5.16

Comments received from the Housing team have noted that this application
should be considered in the context of the previously implemented
development which provided 61 apartments. The comments confirm therefore
that an affordable housing contribution of 35% is required but that a financial
contribution in lieu of on-site delivery would be acceptable.

5.17

The previous application for the redevelopment of the entire site was first
submitted in October 2008 and received planning permission in March 2009;
over 9 years ago. The majority of the application has been completed except
for internal works associated with the restaurant units. The legal agreement
associated with this permission set out provisions for the delivery of off-site
affordable housing by way of financial contributions.

5.18

This application seeks planning permission for the change of use of part of one
of the restaurant units to accommodate three residential units. The applicant
has submitted marketing information from a period of over four years which
demonstrates the extent of the marketing efforts to secure tenants for the
restaurant units.

5.19

Each planning application should be considered on its own merits. This is an
application that will create three residential units and therefore does not trigger
an affordable housing contribution under Core Policy 24. A significant period of
time has passed since the granting of the original planning permission for the
redevelopment of that site. The applicant has submitted marketing evidence
which accounts for the vacant restaurant units that remain at the site and
during the period since the majority of the development has been complete.

5.20

Officers do not consider that a larger site has been sub-divided to avoid the
requirements of the affordable housing policy, in addition marketing information
has been submitted which supports the applicant’s change in intentions for this
area of the site. Officers are of the view that this application should be
considered on its own merits and not in the context of the previous permission.
Therefore, officers do not consider that the requested contribution meets the
three tests set out in Paragraph 56 of the NPPF:
a) Necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms

Page 36

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

b) Directly related to the development, and
c) Fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.
5.21

Officers are aware that there are outstanding affordable housing contributions
from the legal agreement associated with the previous permission (application
ref. P08/V1237) that have not been paid within the timescales set out in that
agreement. Officers are aware that communication with the developer is
continuing in order to secure the outstanding payments.

5.22

As noted above, this application should be considered on its own merits. The
legal matters associated with a previous application are not a material planning
consideration relevant to this case.

5.23

Visual impact and impact upon setting of Listed Buildings and
the Conservation Area.
The only external works proposed with this application is the insertion of a
grate over the proposed courtyard to serve unit 3. Details of this feature are
recommended to be provided by condition.

5.24

Internal works include the erection of dividing walls between the units and
between unit 3 and the remaining café/ bar space. The walls between unit 3
and the café/ bar have already been constructed and therefore this application
is seeking retrospective consent.

5.25

Officers, in consultation with the Conservation Officer, are satisfied that the
dividing walls will not result in any harm to the significance of the listed building.
It has been confirmed that the ground floor of The Old Gaol was originally
divided up, only being opened up during works carried out in the 1970s.

5.26

The openings approved under the previous application are to be retained.
Officers consider that there will be no significant impact upon the setting of the
listed building or adjacent listed buildings or upon the setting of the
Conservation Area.

5.27

Residential Amenity
The proposed residential units will have the following internal floorspace:
Unit 1 (2-bedroom) = 64.55 square metres
Unit 2 (1-bedroom) = 41.0 square metres
Unit 3 (1-bedroom) = 64.5 square metres.

5.28

Policy DP2 of the emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 2 specifies space standards
for new build one- and two-bedroom dwellings. This policy is emerging and not
yet adopted, therefore has very limited weight in the planning balance. In
addition, this policy does not make reference to the creation of units via a
change of use. There is currently no adopted policy to require certain
dimensions for residential units. Officers are satisfied that the size of the units
being created are adequate in that they will not result in unacceptable living
conditions that would be detrimental to the amenities of future occupiers.

Page 37

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

5.29

The bedrooms of units 1 and 2 will be served by existing high level windows in
the north-west elevation of the building. Due to the change in levels across the
site the windows are at ground level onto an access walkway leading to other
residential properties and amenity areas within the complex. To protect the
amenities of future occupiers of these units officers consider it necessary to
require these windows to be obscure glazed by way of condition. Whilst a lack
of outlook from a habitable room is not favourable, officers are mindful of the
constraints of the building and wider site, and the harmful impact upon the
significance of the listed building if additional openings to provide outlook from
all habitable rooms in the proposed units were to be required. Officers consider
that the minimal harmful impact upon the amenities of future occupiers is not
significant enough to warrant refusal of the application.

5.30

The bedroom of Unit 3 will be served by a courtyard with an opening to the
ground floor level above. As stated above, details of the proposed grate, to
ensure this space is usable are recommended to be submitted by condition.
The proposed residential units are not provided with any private amenity space.
The occupiers will be able to access the shared private amenity space within
the wider Old Gaol complex. Given the constrained nature of the site, its
position within the town centre with access to public amenity areas as well as
access to high quality shared amenity space within the complex officers are
satisfied that an adequate provision of amenity space will be available to future
residents.

5.31

5.32

The applicant has provided a sound insulation assessment to demonstrate that
adequate soundproofing between the residential units themselves and to the
café/bar area can be provided. The environmental health officer has been
consulted and is satisfied that the proposed development is acceptable so long
as the mitigation measures set out in the assessment are adhered to.

5.33

Public Access
The legal agreement associated with the previous planning consent for the
redevelopment of the site (application ref. P08/V1237) included clauses to
ensure that specific public access routes are maintained across the site. A plan
showing these access routes is included in Appendix 1. The routes are:
Route 1 – access via a gate south of Bridge Street to the public riverside
garden. This route is to be open to members of the public every day of
the year between 9am and sunset.
Route 2 – access from Bridge Street, round the back of the unit now
occupied by Costa Coffee, through the covered alleyway between The
Old Gaol and the rear of 1 & 2 Bridge Street to the public riverside
garden. This route is to be open to members of the public every day of
the year between 9am and sunset.
Route 3 – access from Bridge Street, round the north west elevation of
The Old Gaol, down the walkway between the south west elevation of
The Old Gaol and the new residential building to the public riverside
garden. This route is to be open to members of the public every day of
the year (excluding Sundays and public holidays) between the hours of

Page 38

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

9am to 5pm once any restaurant/ café/ bar or similar establishment
operating from the ground floor of The Old Gaol (indicated in red on the
plan) is open for business.
Route 4 – access from Bridge Street, running north through the site to
an access gate to the north of Twickenham House onto East St Helen
Street. This route is to be open to members of the public every day of
the year (excluding Sundays and public holidays) between 9am and
8pm or sunset (whichever is earlier).
5.34

Whilst part of the ground floor restaurant space is proposed to be converted
into residential accommodation the remainder will be retained for a restaurant/
café/ bar use. As part of the restaurant is being retained there will be no impact
on public access route 3 coming forward at the point at which such a business
is opened. Officers have sought legal advice and as not all of the restaurant
space is being removed, the legal agreement does not need to be altered as a
result of this proposed development and therefore the provisions within the
agreement, as stated above, still stand.

5.35

Officers are aware that concerns have been raised as to the compliance with
the provisions within the legal agreement for the opening of the other public
access points which are not reliant upon the restaurant unit being opened and
comment has been provided by The Old Gaol Management Company to
explain a decision earlier this year to temporarily close access route 2. The
compliance with the legal agreement associated with the previous planning
consent is not a material planning consideration in the assessment of this
application. Officers are aware that concerns have been raised previously to
enforcement officers which are continuing to be investigated. Officers are
satisfied that the provision of public access routes secured through the
previous legal agreement are not restricted by the implementation of this
planning permission.

5.36

Traffic, parking and highway safety
The proposed development will create three additional residential units on site.
The amended design and access statement submitted in support of the
application confirms that no on-site parking will be provided to serve the
proposed residential units.

5.37

The site is within a highly sustainable location within the town centre with
excellent access to shops, facilities and public transport links.

5.38

The Highways liaison officer from Oxfordshire County Council has been
consulted on the application and has advised that the adjacent controlled
parking zone is oversubscribed and there is the potential that the proposed
additional residential units could add additional on-street parking pressure in
this already oversubscribed area. The highways officer confirms therefore that
the proposed residential units will need to be removed from eligibility for
permits within the controlled parking zone via a unilateral undertaking between
the applicant and Oxfordshire County Council.

Page 39

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

5.39

The highways liaison officer has recommended that additional cycle parking
provision be provided on site, which has also been recommended by the Air
Quality Officer with regards to providing facilities for alternative means of
transport to reduce the impact of the development upon air quality. Whilst
visiting the application site the officer was made aware that a significant
number of additional cycle stands were provided within the redevelopment of
the site above the provision required under the previous planning consent.
Officers therefore consider that there is adequate provision for cycle parking
within the site to accommodate the additional residential units.

5.40

Enforcement matters

5.41

5.42

As noted above officers are aware of concerns regarding the public access
routed being open in accordance with the provisions set out in the legal
agreement associated with the previous permission. The enforcement team are
aware and are continuing to investigate.
Concerns have also been raised with regards to the loss of a Willow tree from
the river frontage during the course of redevelopment works. Enforcement
officers are continuing to investigate and consider a replacement tree in
consultation with the Forestry officer. Officers do not consider that this separate
enforcement matter relating to a previous permission has any material
consideration in the assessment of this application.

Community Infrastructure Levy
The proposed development involves the change of use of 170 square metres of
floorspace to residential accommodation. The council’s CIL charging schedule
was adopted in September 2017 and implemented in November 2017. This
application is therefore liable for CIL.

5.43

Other considerations
Concerns have been raised as to future applications being submitted to change
the use of the remaining part of the restaurant space into residential use. Each
application is considered on its own merits and any future proposals should not
be considered in the assessment of this case. Future applications would be
considered on their own merits.

6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
The development will provide three additional residential units within the built
area of Abingdon. Marketing information has been submitted which
demonstrates that whilst there has been sustained marketing efforts, the
restaurant unit has failed to be sold or leased for over four years. Officers are
satisfied that the proposed development will not have a significantly harmful
impact upon the vitality and viability of the town centre. The development will not
harm the setting or historic fabric of the listed building and the amenities of
nearby residents and future occupiers have been adequately protected. Officers
are of the view that the application complies with the development plan and the
provisions of the NPPF and should be supported.

Page 40

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies;
CP01
CP03
CP04
CP24
CP32
CP35
CP37
CP39

-

Presumption in Favour of Sustainable Development
Settlement Hierarchy
Meeting Our Housing Needs
Affordable Housing
Retail Development and other Main Town Centre Uses
Promoting Public Transport, Cycling and Walking
Design and Local Distinctiveness
The Historic Environment

Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 saved policies:
DC5 - Access
DC7 - Waste Collection and Recycling
DC9 - The Impact of Development on Neighbouring Uses
HE1 - Preservation and Enhancement: Implications for Development
HE4 - Development within setting of listed building
HE5 - Development involving alterations to a listed building
HE7 - Change of use of listed building
Emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 2
The draft local plan part 2 is not currently adopted policy. Examination of the
plan has been completed and the Insepctor’s interimm report is awaited.
Therefore it is officers’ opinion that the emerging Local Plan and its policies
carry limited weight for decision making at this time. The relevant policies of this
emerging policy are as follows:
DP2 – Space Standards
DP13 – Change of Use of Retail Units to Other Uses
DP16 – Access
DP23 – Impact of Development on Amenity
DP36 – Hertiage Assets
DP37 – Conservation Areas
DP38 – Listed Buildings
Neighbourhood Plan
Abingdon does not currently have an adopted neighbourhood plan.
Supplementary Planning Guidance
- Design Guide (March 2015)
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)
Human Rights Act
The provisions of the Human Rights Act 1998 have been taken into account in
the processing of the application and the preparation of this report.

Page 41

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 3 October 2018

Equalities
In determining this application the Council has had regard to its equalities
obligations including under Section 149 of the Equalities Act 2010.
Author: Penny Silverwood
Email: penny.silverwood@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 42

Ro

Tur
na
ga
in

ge
id
Br

Lan
e

Appendix 1

ad

Twickenham
House

Ab
gd

Page 43

in

The Old Gaol

on
Br
ge

id

s
me

er
Riv

Location Plan

a
Th

- 1:1250

Revision
Project.

Drawn by

The Old Gaol
Bridge Road
Abingdon

Date

February 2018
Scale

martin blake associates ltd 4 miles's buildings bath ba1 2qs tel 01225 42 89 77
e-mail mba@mba-architecture.co.uk

1:1250 @ A3

Revision

456/lba/02

Drawing Title.

Location Plan

UP

rwp

UP

Mezannine Level

UP

Wall hatched thus, unauthorised
works, consent for which is
sought as part of this planning/
listed building application.

Page 44

Lightwell over

Wall hatched thus, unauthorised
works, consent for which is
sought as part of this planning/
listed building application.

Key
A3 - Cafe/ bar

C3 - Residential Space

Accommodation schedule
Total residential

0.00m²/0.00ft²

Restaurant space

585.00m²/ 6295ft²

Grand Total

585m²/ 6295ft²

UP

FILENAME:

Revision

drawn by

checked by

mb
date

February 2018

martin blake associates ltd 4 miles's buildings bath ba1 2qs tel 01225 42 89 77
e-mail mba@mba-architecture.co.uk

scale

drawing no.

1:100@A1

456-E-01

revision

© MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LIMITED
FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY TO BE WORKED TO.
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE
REPORTED TO MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LTD IMMEDIATELY

project title

drawing title

The Old Gaol
Bridge Road
Abingdon

Existing
Ground Floor Plan
Apartment/Wine Bar/ Cafe

UP

rwp

UP

External Seating Area

Mezannine Level
Back of House
Bar

External
Seating
Area

UP

Wine/ Cafe/ Bar
Page 45

Bed
Courtyard

Male WCs

Office

Shower

w.

Unit 3

Female WCs

gross internal
floor area:
64.5m²/ 694ft²

New walling
hatched thus

Key

Kitchen

Living/dining
Bed 1.
Shower

A3 - Cafe/ bar

.

Ensuite

w

Liv/kit/din
Unit 2

External Seating Area

Bed 1.
gross internal floor area:
41.0m²/ 441ft²

.

w

C3 - Residential Space

Shower

.

w

Cpd

Accommodation schedule

Bed 2.
Liv/kit/din
Unit 1

Unit 1
Unit 2
Unit 3

2 bedroom flat
1 bedroom flat
1 bedroom flat

64.55m²/ 695ft²
41.00m²/ 441ft²
64.50m²/ 694ft²

gross internal floor area:
64.55m²/ 695ft²

Total residential

170.05m²/1830ft²

Restaurant space

414.95m²/ 4465ft²

Grand Total

585m²/ 6295ft²

UP

FILENAME:

Revision

drawn by

checked by

mb
date

February 2018

martin blake associates ltd 4 miles's buildings bath ba1 2qs tel 01225 42 89 77
e-mail mba@mba-architecture.co.uk

scale

drawing no.

1:100@A1

456-LBA-01

revision

© MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LIMITED
FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY TO BE WORKED TO.
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE
REPORTED TO MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LTD IMMEDIATELY

project title

drawing title

The Old Gaol
Bridge Road
Abingdon

Proposed
Ground Floor Plan
Apartment/Wine Bar/ Cafe

Agenda Item 8
Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 03 October 2018

APPLICATION NO.
SITE
PARISH
PROPOSAL

WARD MEMBER(S)
APPLICANT
OFFICER

P18/V0493/LB
The Old Gaol, Abingdon Oxfordshire, OX14
3HE
ABINGDON
Proposed change of use of section of ground
floor space to form 3 no. apartments.
Retrospective consent for erection of block work
partitions to same space. (Additonal information
regarding sound insulation submitted
10/7/2018).
Katie Finch
Helen Pighills
Cranbourne Homes Ltd
Penny Silverwood

RECOMMENDATION
To grant listed building consent subject to the following conditions:
Standard
1. Approved plans.
To be submitted within two months of consent
2. Details of heat insultation, means of escape, fire protection, vents,
flues and extracts.
3. Details of grate covering courtyard of unit 3.
1.0
1.1

INTRODUCTION AND PROPOSAL

1.2

The application concerns part of the ground floor of The Old Gaol, Abingdon. It
is located to the south west of the River Thames within the town centre of
Abingdon. Vehicular access to The Old Gaol is obtained via Bridge Street to
the north east.

1.3

The Old Gaol is Grade II listed and situated within the Abingdon Town Centre
Conservation Area.

1.4

This application seeks listed building consent for the erection of block work
partition walls within the ground floor of The Old Gaol to facilitate change of
use of part of the restaurant space into three residential units. Some of the
works to construct the dividing walls has already been carried out and
therefore this application is retrospective. Officers are aware that works have
ceased on site to await the outcome of this application.

This application is referred to committee as it was called in by Councillor S.
Lovatt and Councillor Pighills.

Page 46

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 03 October 2018

1.5

An associated application for planning permission for the change of use has
been submitted and will also be considered by this committee. The application
reference is P18/V0492/FUL).

1.6

A site location plan is below:

1.7

Extracts of the application plans are attached as Appendix 1.

2.0
2.1

SUMMARY OF CONSULTATIONS & REPRESENTATIONS
Below is a summary of the responses received to the submission. A full copy of
all comments made can be viewed online at www.whitehorsedc.gov.uk.
Abingdon Town
Council

Objection. Comments can be summarised as:
 The original planning permission was granted
on the condition that there would still be public
open space. That condition should be upheld.
 If restaurant use is not possible alternative
uses which would ensure public access, other
than a change of use to residential should be
sought
 The size of the apartments is too small.

Page 47

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 03 October 2018



3.0
3.1

Continued concerns with the implementation of
the original development with regards to
affordable housing and access

Conservation Officer

No objection, recommended conditions.

Friends of Abingson
Civic Society
Councillor Pighills

No objection
Object. Comments can be summarised as:
 Share the concerns of Abingdon Town Council
and the Friends of Abingdon Civic Society

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY
Planning permission and listed building consent was granted in 2009 for the
redevelopment of The Old Gaol site to provide a total of 61 residential units
both within the original buildings and construction of a new building, as well as
the provision of restaurant space, café space and the provision of public
access. Officers are aware that construction works on all residential units are
completed. The approved restaurant space on the ground floor of The Old Gaol
remains vacant and internal work are not complete. The restaurant and café
space at 1 Bridge street remains vacant and internal works are incomplete.
Costa Coffee is operating from 2 Bridge Street. Key applications relating to this
permission are below:
P16/V0019/LB - Approved (25/02/2016)
To Install two information panels
P15/V2459/LB - Approved (08/12/2015)
Removal of existing masonry below existing ground floor high level window
openings to form full height frameless glazed openings.
P15/V2457/FUL - Approved (08/12/2015)
Removal of existing masonry below existing ground floor high level window
openings to form full height frameless glazed openings.
P09/V1462/DIS - Approved (03/02/2010)
Request for compliance with conditions for Application No: ABG/20698,
Conditions 7, 8, 9, 11, 13, 14, 16, 17, 18, 23, 24, 32 and 34 and Application No:
ABG/20698/1-LB, Conditions 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9.
P09/V1660/DIS - Approved (30/11/2009)
Request for compliance with conditions for Application No: ABG/20698,
Conditions 5, 15, 22, 26, 27 & 29.
P08/V1238/LB - Approved (19/03/2009)
Demolition of Sports Hall, Swimming Pool, No 4 Turn Again Lane, part of
Police Station and garage block. Construction of new building containing 43
apartments. Conversion of Old Gaol to restaurant and 10 apartments.
Conversion of Police Station to communal use and 3 dwellings. Conversion

Page 48

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 03 October 2018

and extension of 25 & 27 and 1& 2 Bridge View to 2 restaurants, a cafe take
away and 5 apartments. New vehicular access onto Bridge Street. Pedestrian
link to East St Helens Street via Twickenham House. Underground parking for
68 cars and 132 cycles.
P08/V1237 - Approved (19/03/2009)
Demolition of Sports Hall, Swimming Pool, No 4 Turn Again Lane, part of
Police Station and garage block. Construction of new building containing 43
apartments. Conversion of Old Gaol to restaurant and 10 apartments.
Conversion of Police Station to communal use and 3 dwellings. Conversion
and extension of 25 & 27 and 1& 2 Bridge View to 2 restaurants, a cafe take
away and 5 apartments. New vehicular access onto Bridge Street. Pedestrian
link to East St Helens Street via Twickenham House. Underground parking for
68 cars and 132 cycles.
3.2

Pre-application History
There is no relevant pre-application history associated with this development.

4.0
4.1

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT ASSESSMENT

5.0
5.1

MAIN ISSUES

5.2

Works have commenced on site to erect block work partition walls within the
ground floor internal space of The Old Gaol to facilitate the change of use of
part of the ground floor to provide three residential units.

5.3

The dividing walls have been constructed of concrete blocks and are non-load
bearing. To accommodate the three units the south-western wing of the
building is divided into two and two dividing walls have been erected within the
main core to separate unit 3 from the restaurant space.
It has been confirmed that the ground floor of The Old Gaol was originally
divided up, only being opened up during works carried out in the 1970s.

5.4

Not relevant to a listed building consent application.

The main planning consideration in the determination of this application is the
impact of the development upon the historic fabric and historic and architectural
interest of the listed building.

5.5

No additional openings are required to serve the residential units; the openings
approved under the previous consent are to be utilised. The only external
works involved in the application is the insertion of a grate over the proposed
courtyard to serve unit 3. Further details of this feature can be provided by
condition.

5.6

Details of fire protection measures, means of escape, heat insulation and the
installation of vents, flues and extracts can be provided by condition to ensure
fittings are appropriate to the setting of the building and do not harm the historic
fabric.

5.7

Officers, in consultation with the Conservation Officer, are satisfied that the
dividing walls will not result in any significant harm to the historic fabric or

Page 49

Vale of White Horse District Council – Committee Report – 03 October 2018

interest of the listed building subject to the above conditioned details being
appropriate.
6.0
6.1

CONCLUSION
The development will not result in any significant harm to the historic fabric or
interest of the listed building. Officers are of the view that the application
complies with the development plan and the provisions of the NPPF and should
be supported.
The following planning policies have been taken into account:
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2031 Part 1 policies;
CP39 - The Historic Environment
Vale of White Horse Local Plan 2011 saved policies:
HE5 – Development involving alterations to a listed building
Emerging Local Plan 2031 Part 2
The draft local plan part 2 is not currently adopted policy. Examination of the
plan has been completed and the Insepctor’s interimm report is awaited.
Therefore it is officers’ opinion that the emerging Local Plan and its policies
carry limited weight for decision making at this time. The relevant policies of this
emerging policy are as follows:
DP36 – Hertiage Assets
DP38 – Listed Buildings
Neighbourhood Plan
Abingdon does not currently have an adopted neighbourhood plan.
National Planning Policy Framework 2018 (NPPF)
Planning Practice Guidance (PPG)

Author: Penny Silverwood
Email: penny.silverwood@southandvale.gov.uk
Telephone: 01235 422600

Page 50

Appendix 1
UP

rwp

UP

Mezannine Level

UP

Wall hatched thus, unauthorised
works, consent for which is
sought as part of this planning/
listed building application.

Page 51
Lightwell over

Wall hatched thus, unauthorised
works, consent for which is
sought as part of this planning/
listed building application.

Key
A3 - Cafe/ bar

C3 - Residential Space

Accommodation schedule
Total residential

0.00m²/0.00ft²

Restaurant space

585.00m²/ 6295ft²

Grand Total

585m²/ 6295ft²

UP

FILENAME:

Revision

drawn by

checked by

mb
date

February 2018

martin blake associates ltd 4 miles's buildings bath ba1 2qs tel 01225 42 89 77
e-mail mba@mba-architecture.co.uk

scale

drawing no.

1:100@A1

456-E-01

revision

© MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LIMITED
FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY TO BE WORKED TO.
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE
REPORTED TO MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LTD IMMEDIATELY

project title

drawing title

The Old Gaol
Bridge Road
Abingdon

Existing
Ground Floor Plan
Apartment/Wine Bar/ Cafe

UP

rwp

UP

External Seating Area

Mezannine Level
Back of House
Bar

External
Seating
Area

UP

Wine/ Cafe/ Bar

Bed
Courtyard

Page 52

Male WCs

Office

Shower

w.

Unit 3

Female WCs

gross internal
floor area:
64.5m²/ 694ft²

New walling
hatched thus

Key

Kitchen

Living/dining
Bed 1.
Shower

A3 - Cafe/ bar

.

Ensuite

w

Liv/kit/din
Unit 2

External Seating Area

Bed 1.
gross internal floor area:
41.0m²/ 441ft²

.

w

C3 - Residential Space

Shower

.

w

Cpd

Accommodation schedule

Bed 2.
Liv/kit/din
Unit 1

Unit 1
Unit 2
Unit 3

2 bedroom flat
1 bedroom flat
1 bedroom flat

64.55m²/ 695ft²
41.00m²/ 441ft²
64.50m²/ 694ft²

gross internal floor area:
64.55m²/ 695ft²

Total residential

170.05m²/1830ft²

Restaurant space

414.95m²/ 4465ft²

Grand Total

585m²/ 6295ft²

UP

FILENAME:

Revision

drawn by

checked by

mb
date

February 2018

martin blake associates ltd 4 miles's buildings bath ba1 2qs tel 01225 42 89 77
e-mail mba@mba-architecture.co.uk

scale

drawing no.

1:100@A1

456-LBA-01

revision

© MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LIMITED
FIGURED DIMENSIONS ONLY TO BE WORKED TO.
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE WORK COMMENCES. ANY DISCREPANCIES TO BE
REPORTED TO MARTIN BLAKE ASSOCIATES LTD IMMEDIATELY

project title

drawing title

The Old Gaol
Bridge Road
Abingdon

Proposed
Ground Floor Plan
Apartment/Wine Bar/ Cafe

